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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Welspun Flooring Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Welspun Flooring Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2020, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As more fully described in note 37 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, the Company as at
March 31, 2020 has recorded Government Grant receivable and corresponding deferred income based
on the claim against the Government Order No. 19 dated March 23, 2018 issued by the Cabinet of the
Government of Telangana instead of sanctioned amount, though there is lack of reasonable assurance
that the balance claim will be sanctioned. This constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to this, the ‘non-current financial
assets’ and ‘other non-current liabilities’ as at March 31, 2020 are overstated by Rs. 1,085.86 million.
There is no impact on the loss for the year, income tax and on shareholder’s fund as at March 31, 2020.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Director’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the sudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion

paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{b) Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion,

(c)

(d)

(f)

(g)

(h)

proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above,
in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid/
provided by Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act;
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(j) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 20110759AAAACU9135
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
SATEMENTS OF WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

Re: Welspun Flooring Limited

{i) (a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of the Company,
except for land aggregating to Rs. 896.42 million for which the Company has entered into
an agreement for sale with Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (TSIIC). As
explained to us, the Company is in the process of executing the sale deed with TSIIC.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such physical verification

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii}{a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the mzintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture yarn and carpet
products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintzined. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

{(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases.
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{viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and
other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,

customs duty and goods & service tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to banks.
There were no dues payable to debenture holders during the year. The Company has not
taken any loan or borrowing from financial institution or government.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the

purposes for which they were raised. No money has been raised by way of initial public
offer / further public offer /debt instruments.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals

mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
preferential allotment or private placement of shares and fully convertible debentures.
According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that
the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 20110759AAAACU9135
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF WELSPUN FLOORING LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Welspun Flooring Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Ind AS
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements as at March 31, 2020:

The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for accruing Government Grant
receivable and corresponding deferred income which could potentially result material misstatements in
the financial statements of the Company.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that @ material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintzined adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements as of March 31, 2020, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and except
for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives
of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2020.
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the Ind AS financial statements of
Welspun Flooring Limited, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the related
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 3 summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March
31, 2020 Ind AS financial statements of Welspun Flooring Limited and this report does affect our report
dated June 29, 2020, which expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN No. 20110759AAAACU9135
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: June 29, 2020




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

As at As at
Patticulars MNote No. Barch 31. 2020 March 31. 2019
{Rs. million) {Rs. million}
ASSETS
Non-curront assols
Property. plant and eguipment 3 B1BG 67 47
Capilsi work-r-progress 3 33665 462077
ntangitie assels 4 3156 (1]
giie Assets Under Dy P 4 - 1373
Right-of-use assats 36 a48 -
Einanoal Aspets
- Other fmancial asseis 5 1.428 67 021
Non-cument lax assats 12{a) 183 145
Other Non Current assets 6 160 00 885 16
Total Non Current Assets 10,155.09 5,840.37
Current assets
Inventones 7 682 45 "
financia Assets
- Cash & cash equvalents 8(a) 332 7259
- Bank baiances ofher thar 8 (a} above B(b) 253 1088
- Othex financial assets B{e) 12383 L)
Cther current assets 9 508 27 9368
Total Curront Assats 131820 177.20
Totat Assats 1147338 SRITET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capitai 10{a) £5000 85000
a% C ly C Praf Share Capital 10{b) 1.85000 170218
0% C c D i 10(¢} 71428 L
Othor equity
Reserves and surphus 10(d) ©1822) {68 26)
Total equity 279516 2,28392
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabllities
Finanaals Labates
- Borrownas 1l 631384 287044
- Lease babiktes 3% 577 -
Deftered Tax kabithes 12 (e} 488 488
Ctner non- current katiibes 13 +.348 89 1TA02
Total non-current liabitities 767298 1,049.41
Curront liabilities
Financial Labikkes
- Borrowings ial 2108 -
- Lease habites ] age -
- Trade P
{a} Totai outsianding dues of micra enterprises and smal enterpnses 6119 -
{b) Tetat outstanding dues of credilors other than micra enlerpnses and small 14(a)
enlerpnises 51501 141
- Other financial labiibes 14(b) 51918 38007
Curent lax iabahes 12(b) 308 308
Employes Benetis Obkgations 15 2523 1183
Other curren! babiities 16 106 85 785
Total Currant liabilities 1,505.15 28424
Total Liabilities 917813 353188
Total Equity and Lisbilities 11,470.73 281TAT
Summary of significant aceount poiicies 2
The accompanying notes are an integeal part of hese knancia stalements
As per oul teport of even dale
ForSRBCRCOLLP For and on behalt of the Board of Directors
Chanerad Accountants
CAl Furm registration number - 3248B2E/£300003 T
- Wy
A X fwcant Davendra Patit
4 by jor Dwecior
Membership No 110758 D NT0S166241 DIN 00062784

hikant Thorat
Company Sacrelary

Piace. Mumza Place: Mumba
Date June 29 2020 Date; June 29 2020




WELSPUN FLOCRING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Yoar Ended Yoar Ended
Particulars Note Ne. March 31, 2020
{R=. miltion) {Rs. million}
Revenue from Operations 17 55220 -
Ciher income 12 045 3487
Total Revenue 552,65 3487
Exponses
Raw malena's mciudng cackaaina maten als consumed 13 649 27 *
Changes in inventones of Frished Goods and Semifisshed qoodsAIP 20 38 527) =
Emiplovee benafits expense il 27804 651
Depteciation and amorizalion expense 2 231 05 a73
Other expenses 2 37582 52719
Finance tosts u 20453 1074
Total expenses 1,397.89 7077
NatLoss befors Tax !mlq BE&
income Tax Expense
= Currend Tax - 581
- Defiered Tax - 488
Total Income Tax Expense 25 - 1049
Nat Loss for the Year (ﬁ.ﬂ) {46.39)
Other Comprehensive income
temns Hal wik oot be reclassiied 10 010l of (055
Ry of post benefit fLoss) 2 57 -
Other comprehensive (incomalfioss for the vaar. not of tax 15.72) #
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (lﬂ_.!GL L‘ﬂ
Eatmngs Per Share (Rs } [Nominal vaiue per share - Rs 10 (March 31, 2019 Rs 13
- Baic {810} 03y
- Dihited @10 ©13)
Summary of sigaifcant account pohces 2
The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these finzncal stalements
As per owr reporl of even date
FaerSRBCA&COLLP For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors

Charterad Accountanty
CAJ Fum ragairaton number  324882E/E300003

2
Per Anil Jobanputra Patil Mukesh Sawaiani
FPartner Owecior CEO & Wnol Time Diretio!
W¥embershio No 110758 DIN 00062784 DiN 0865008

Chirag Goenka ikant Thorat

Chief Financial Oficer Company Secretary
Prace: Mumbai Place: Mumba

Date June 23 2020 Date: June 20 2020




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020.

a.Equity Share Capital (Rs.million)

Particulars Notes No. of Shares Amount
As at April 1, 2018 3,429,800 3430
Shares issued during the year 10{@ 61,570,200 61570
As at March 31, 2019 65.000.000 650.00
Shares issued during the year = 4
As at March 31, 2020 65,000,000 650.00
b. 8% Non Cumulative Compulsorily convertible (NCCC) Preference shares (Rs.million)

Particulars Notes No. of Shares Amount
As at April 1, 2018 - -
Changes in 8% NCC preference share capital during the year 10{(b) 170,218,385 1.702.18
As at March 31, 2019 170,218,385 1,70218
Changes in 8% NCC preference share capital during the year 10(b) 14,781615 147.82
As at March 31, 2020 185,000,000 1,850.00
c. 0% Comg ily rtible D (Rs.million)

Particulars. Notes | No. of Debentures Amount
As at April 1 2018 - -
Changes in Cempulsorily Convertible Debenture during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 - =
Changes in Compulsarily Convertible Debenture during the year 10(c) 71.438.385 71438
As at March 31, 2020 71,438,385 714.38
d.Other Equity

{Rs.millian)
Sharg A"p““.u“ Reserve & surplus/ | Total Other

Particulars Notes Han::cszl:mﬂ Retained Eamings Equity
As at April 1, 2018 10(d} 741.10 {21.87) 71923
Loss for the year - (46.39) (46.39)
Less : Share issued against pending allotment maney 10(d) {741.10) - (74110}
As at April1.2019 - (68.26) {68.26)
Loss for the year - (845 24} (845.24)
Other Comprehensive loss - 5.72) (5.72)
Baiances as at March 31, 2020 10(d) - (819.22) (819.22)

Summary of significant account golicies

The Accompanying nctes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our regort of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA] Firm registration number : 324982E/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra
Pariner

Membership No. 110759

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\ o 0}(% o
(/
iwani Devendlira Patil ukesh Sawalani

DiIN: 05168241

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 29, 2020

Director CEQ & Whele Time Director
DIN: 00062784  DIN: 08169008

‘Shashikant Thorat




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Year Ended Yoar Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018

(Rs. miltion) {Rs.millien)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand 001 000
Bank batances

- In cumren| aceourts 331 7258

Total 332 72.69

“During the year the. loar amount of Rs. 23 mil on was converted to 0% Compy sorily Convertible Debertures. Previous year loan amounl of Rs. 312.00 million was corverted to 8%
NCCC Prefererce Share Capital

Change in Liability arising from financing activities

(Rs. Mitlion)
April 1, 2018 Cash flow Other adjustments Masch 31, 2020
Borrawing-Non Current [Refer Note 11 (a)] 287044 350509 236 6.377.89
Borrowing-Current [Refer Note 11 {a}] - 294,09 2300 271.09
2,870.44 3,799.18 25.36 6,648.98
Notes:
1. Other adiustment pertains to amoriisatior of transactior costs incurred on borrowings over the terure of the loan usrg the effective interes! rate method
2. Qther ad = toc iont of loan into 0% Compuisorily Converlible Debertures (March 31, 2019 8% NCCC Prefererce Share Capital)

3. The slatement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accourting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash fiows

The accompany g noles are ar iriegral part of these financia statements.

As per our report of sven date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accouriants
(Q ¢ A
M &

ra Patil 'ukesh Sawalani
Director CEOQ & Whole T'me Director
DIN : 00062784 DIN : 081639008

F.rm Reg siration No: 324982E/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra
Pariner
Membarshp No. 110759

Shashikant Thorat
Financial Offcer Compary Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumba

Date: June 29, 2020 Date: Jure 29, 2020
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WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2020

Corporate information

Welspun Flooring Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company”) is a public limited company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India.
The registered office of the Company is located at D No. 6-3-609/147/A, Opposite Sri Chakra
Apartment, Anand Nagar Colony, Khairatabad, Hyderabad, Telangana — 500 004, India. The
Company is incorporated with its main objective to carry business of manufacturing and selling of
Carpet Tiles, Stone Polymer Composite Tiles and other Flooring Solutions. The Company has
commenced its operations and manufacturing with effect from September 13, 2019.

Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
except as disclosed in Note 2.20.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standaione financial statements has been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. The
financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities
that is measured at fair value as stated in subsequent policies

Foreign currency transiation
a. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in INR, which is also its functional
currency and all items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured
using the same functional currency.

b. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated and recorded into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resuiting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.- All other foreign exchange gains and

losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other expenses
or other income, as applicable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from conlracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from confracts with customers are provided in Note 2.20.

Sale of goods

For sale of goods, revenue is recognized when control of the goods has transferred at a point in
time i.e. when the goods have been delivered to the specific location (delivery). Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the responsibility, manner of distribution, price to sell the
goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

recognized by the Company when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. Payment is due within 0-180 days.

Contract balances :

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
{i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Interest income
Interest income from the financial assets are recognized using effeclive interest rate method.

Other Income
Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying
for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants related to
income are government grants other than those related io assels.

Government grants relating fo an expense item are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented either under “other operating income” (Revenue from operation) or are deducted in
reporting the relaled expense. The presentation approach is applied consistently to all similar
grants. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss over the periods
and in proportions in which depreciation expense on those assels is recognized.

Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilifies attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred fax
is recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other
comprehensive income respectively.

Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted. at the reporting date where the Company
operates and generates faxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected o be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the exient that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. unused tax losses,
depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect changes in probability that sufficient laxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other
and the resultant net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when, (a) the
Company has a iegally enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities,
and (b) the Deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same
faxation authority

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,

if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease lerm and the estimated useful lives of the assets of 3 to 5 years:

if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in Note 2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments). in calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made.

Property, plant and equipment

Property Plant and equipment except for freehold land are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, duty saved under EPCG,
any import duties and other taxes(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected cost of
decommissioning. Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
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replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) grant relating to preperty. plant and equipment relate to
duty saved on import of capital goods and spares under the EPCG scheme. Under the scheme,
the Company is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on imporl of capital goods
over a specified period of time. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be
required 1o pay the duly saved along with interest to the regulatory authorities. Such grants are
initially recognised as a liability and are released to the statement of profit and loss based on
fulfiiment of related export obligations.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Freehold land is not depreciated. The property, plani and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the asset's usefui life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease

term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the
lease term.

For following items of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to ailocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Assets Estimated Useful Life
{years)
Plant & Machinery 5te 15
Material Handling Equipment 11012
Transmission lines, cables and other network assets 40
Office Equipment 3105
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers and Servers 31086
Vehicles 5
Electrical installation 5-10
Factory Building 30

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's
expert which is equal to or lower than those specified by Schedule !l fo the Companies Act, 2013,
in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the
original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate. at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking
into account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss within other expenses or other income, as applicable.

Intangible assets

intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation methods and periods

Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortized on a straighi-line basis over
its expected useful life over a peried of five years.
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impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowesl levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assels (cash-generaiing units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisabie vaiue. Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases
on weighted average basis. Cost of work-in progress and finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure,
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cosls are
assigned lo individual items of inventory moving weighted average basis. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the eslimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
A. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- thoseto be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

the confractual terms of the cash flows.

- For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income;

B. Initial Recognition and Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not al fair value through profit or loss, transaction cosis that are directly
atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
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in value. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents inciudes
outstanding bank overdraft shown within current liabilities in statement of financial position and
which are considered as integral part of company's cash management policy.

Trade receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

C. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

i. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that resuit
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

- Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral pari of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-
off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment aliowance from the gross carrying
amount;

- Fortrade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 financial instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Financial liabilities
A. Initial Recognition and Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case
of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method. The effeciive interest rate is the rate that
exaclly discounts estimated future cash outfiow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time of
initiai recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease agreements are measured at the
lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of minimum lease payments.

B. Subsequent Measurement

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair vaiue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the barrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
lhe end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are recognised, initially

at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method.

Derivatives and hedging activities

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commaodity price risks,
the Company enters into forward, option, swap conftracts and other derivative financial
instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reperting period.

- Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

The Company enters into derivative coniracts to hedge risks which are not designated as
hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing
cosls are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

a. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settied. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected fo be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
emplioyees up to the end of the reporling period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporiing period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised in profit or loss. The obligations
are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardiess of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur.

c. Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and
- defined conlribution pians such as provident fund and superannuation Fund
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Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are
discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, direcily in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet. Remeasurements are not reclassified io the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit or Loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC), Pension Fund and other
Social Security Funds

The Contribution towards provident fund, ESIC, pension fund and Social Security Funds for
cerfain employees is made to the regulatory authorities where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does
not carry any further obligations apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Superannuation Fund

Contribution towards superannuation fund for certain employees is made to SBI Life Insurance
Company where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined
Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from
contribution made on monthly basis.

Bonus Plan

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for service warranties, volume discounts and returns are recognised when the
Company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions for restructuring
are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal plan for restructuring
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and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the Company will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected
by it.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the
ongoing activities of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settie or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit atiributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares. (Note 33)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
- the weighted average number of additional equily shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected lo be realised or inlended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within twelve maonths after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

e & & o
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All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabiiity for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
millions with two decimal as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes
as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating
Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legai Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition.
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most
leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in ind
AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the
lessor.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with
the date of initial application on April 1, 2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical
expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at April 1, 2019. Instead, the
Company applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also
elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date,
have a lease term of 12 months or less and do nol contain a purchase option {(shori-term leases),
and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Effective April 1, 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ and applied the same on
ail lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach Right-To-Use Asset and corresponding Lease Liability have been recognised at Rs.
4.44 million as at April 1, 2019. Accordingly the comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019
have not been retrospectively adjusted and there is no impact on opening reserves. The effect of
this adoption is not material to the current financial statements and earnings per share for the
year ending March 31, 2020. Due to application of ind AS 116 for the year ended March 31, 2020,
Depreciation and Finance cost has increased by Rs. 3.06 million and Rs. 0.96 million respectively
and other expenses have increased by Rs. 2.25 million. Total expenses(net) have increased by
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Rs. 6.26 million. Refer details of the movement during the year in the balances of the Right-To-
Use Asset and corresponding Lease Liability in Note 36.

Upen adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assels. Refer 1o Note 2.6 Leases for the accounting policy.

The Standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients which have been
applied by the Company.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously
classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases and ieases of low-value assels. The
Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments. discounted
using the Company's incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 and right-of-use assets were
recognised based on the amount equal o the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid
and accrued lease payments previously recognised.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
a) Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

b) Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of
initial application

c) Applied the short-term leases exemptions fo leases with lease term that ends within 12
months of the date of initial application

d) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application

e) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to
extend or terminate the lease

The Weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019
is 10%

The lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019, can be reconciled to the operating lease commiiments as
of March 31, 2019, as follows:

Particulars Amount (Rs.
million)

Operating lease commitments as at March 31, 2019 444
Incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019 10%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at April 1, 2019 4.04
Add: Lease payments not included in operating lease commitmenis as at 225
March 31- 2019 but presented as lease liabilities as per Ind AS 116

Lease Liabilities as at April 1, 2019 6.68

Ind AS 12 - Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penallies associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the
following:

= Whether an entity considers unceriain tax treatments separately

« The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

* How an entity defermines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
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credits and fax rates
* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treaiment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty.

The MCA has also carried out amendments 1o the following other accounting standards. The
effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments were insignificant on the financial
statements. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

i) Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
i) Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settiement

iii) Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

iv) Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Company's accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calcuiation for each affected
line item in the financial statements

Critical estimates and judgements
i) Current tax expense and deferred tax

The calculation of the Company's tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and
judgement in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until
resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal
legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give rise to material
profits/losses and/or cash flows. Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes. including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax
positions. (Refer Note 26)

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities
The recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it is more likely than
not that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducied. To determine the future taxable profits, reference is
made to the latest available profit forecasts.

_—

Provisions & Contingent Liabilities.

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the
exposures to contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a
pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the
financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual
liability may be different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer Note 31).

i) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
Property, Plant and Equipmeni represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the

Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value af the end of ils
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life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management
at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. For the relative size
of the Company's property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer Notes 3 and 4).

iv) Provision for Inventory

The Company writes down inventories 1o net realisable value based on an estimate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of estimates of net selling prices, age and quality/condition of the down-
graded inventories. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying vaiue of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the

periods in which such estimate has been changed. Refer Note 7 for details of inventory and
provisions.

v) Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outfiows expected to be required to settie the defined benefit obligations. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest rates of government bonds of
maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability. Refer Note 21 for the details of
the assumptions used in estimating the defined benefit obligation.

vi) Government Grants

The Company has accrued income for Government grant related 1o fixed assets, in the ratio
of related expenses, based on eligibility amount. Critical judgement is involved in determining
whether the Company has fulfilled the conditions related to the grant. Estimates are involved
in calculation of grant income where the eligibility amount is not confirmed by the government
but application is made and the Company is complying all terms & conditions for eligibility.
Further, key assumptions used in calculation of government grant to be recognized as
revenue, receivables and deferred income include, the future sales growth rate, mix of inter
and infra state purchases and corresponding input tax credit, utilization of input tax credit,
indirect tax rates on the products, period of eligibility etc. Changes in the assumptions selected
by the management could significantly affect the recognition of revenue, receivables and
deferred income related to such government grants.

Estimation uncertainty relating to the giobal health pandemic on COVID-19

The the Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position (including
servicing of debts) for next one year as the Company has commenced the commercial
production from current year and being in initial state of the business, had incurred a net
cash loss during the current year. Basis assessment, the Company has concluded that
the Company may need financial support and parent company has agreed to provide the
same. Accordingly, the Company will be able to meet all its obligations for next one year,
Therefare, the financial statements are prepared on going concemn basis. The situation
is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the
potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these standalone Ind AS financial statements. The Company wil
continue to closely monitor any malerial changes arising of future economic conditions
and impact on its business.
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Note 3 - Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rs. mition)
Freshold  Buildings Plantand Vehicles Office Furniture Computars Total Capital work-in-
Land Equipment Equipment  and Fixtures progress
Cost or valuation
LAt April 1, 2018
(Opening gross carrying amount - - 027 - 031 101 aas 184 3833
Additions - - 0.06 » 1.54 C16 136 31 4.590.44
Disposals - - - - - - . -
At March 31, 2018 (A) - - 033 - 1585 116 1.41 475 4628.77
Elpml.lllnn
Al April 1, 2018 - B 0.06 - - 0.09 0.01 016 -
Depreciation charge during the year - - 0.05 - 018 0o7 Q15 042 =
Disposals = - z 5 = s - - =
At March 31, 2018 (B) - - 0.11 - 0.1§ 0.16 0.18 058 -
Net book value at March 31, 2018 [A-B) - - 0.22 - 1.70 1.00 1.258 417 4,628.77
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2018
‘Opening gross carrying amount - - 033 - 184 116 1.42 475 4628.77
Acditions 89642 1512856 596239 8.84 061 2816 G589 840087 330.95
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Transfers/Capilalised - - - - - - - - {4.628.77)
At March 31, 2020 [A) 896.42 1,512.88 596272 B8.84 2.45 28.32 am 8,414.62 330.895
Depreciation
At April 1, 2019 - - 010 - 6.15 0.16 017 058 -
Depreciation charge during the year - 2837 104 54 on 031 049 [s3:1) 22442
Disposals “ - N - o - » - "
At March 31, 2020 (B) - 28.37 194,54 0.4 0.46 0.65 o 225.00 -
Net book value at March 31, 2020 {A-B) 886.42 148440 5,768.08 8.73 1.99 24.67 1.4 §,189.62 330.86
Notes :

{1} The Company commenced commercial production and the plant was operational with effect from Seplember 13, 2018
{ii) Capital work-in-progress includes employee benefit expenses, professional charges, travelling and ather expenses of Rs NiL miflion as on March 31, 2020 {March 31, 2019

(iii) Capitalised Borrowing Costs

The Company started construction of new plant in May 2017 using the specific borrowings received for this purpose. The amount of borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended
March 31, 2020 was Rs. 37.34 miflion (Net of interest Subsidy of Rs 163.61 million) (March 31, 2019: Rs 108.27 million). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing cost
eligible for capitalisation was & 65% ,which is the effective rate of the specific bormowing.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets

(Rs. million)
Intangible
%2::2:" assets under
development
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2018
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions 7.20 13.73
Transfers/Capitalised
At March 31, 2019 (A) 7.20 13.73
Amortisation
At April 1, 2018
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation charge during the year 0.32 -
At March 31, 2019 (B) 0.32 -
Net book value at March 31, 2019 (A-B) 6.88 13.73
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2019
Opening gross carrying amount 7.20 13.73
Additions 30.50 -
Transfers/Capitalised - (13.73)
At March 31, 2020 (A) 37.70 -
Amortisation
At April 1, 2019
Opening accumulated amortisation 0.32 -
Amortisation charge during the year 3.57 -
Disposals/Transfers 0.25 -
Exchange differences - =
At March 31, 2020 (B) 4.14 -
Net book value at March 31, 2020 (A-B) 33.56 -
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Particulars

Note §: Others Non Current Financial Assets
Interest subsidy rece:vable (Refer Note 37)
Government Grant Receivable (Refer Note 37)
Security Deposis to Others

Note § : Other non-current assets
iUnsecured. considered good)
Capta Advances 1o Others

Note 7 : Inventories

Raw Matenals {Including malerial in transit of Rs. 85 42 Milion)
Waork-in-Frogress

Finished Goods

Note 8(a) : Cash and cash equivalents
Balances wth Banks

- in Current Accounts

Cash on Hand

Note 8 (b) : Bank baiances other than cash and cash equivaients
- Fixed Deposils original maturity more than 3 months but iess than 12 months

MNote 8(c) : Other financial assets
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Government Grant Receivable (Refer Note 37)

Mote 9 : Other current assets
Balances wth Government Authorities
Advance to Others

Prepaid Expenses

~

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
(Rs. miflion} {Rs. millian)
31543 -
1,098.30 -
15.84 0.21
1,429.87 0.21
S
160.00 985.16
160.00 985.16
34393 ®
23875 -
99.77 -
682.45 -
33 72.59
0.0t 0.00
3.32 72.59
253 10.88
2.53 10.89
Lt
s 003
123.63 -
123.63 0.03
416.59 89.56
85.39 233
429 1.77
506.27 93.69
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Note 10 : Equity share capital and other equity
10 (a) : Equity share capital

(i} Authorised equity share capital

Number of Amount
Shares (RS million)
As at April 1, 2018 5,000,000 50.00
Increase during the year 60,000,000 600.00
As at March 31, 2019 65,000,000 650.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 65,000,000 650.00
Equity Shares of Re. 10 each (March 31, 2019 : Re. 10 each)
(ii) Movements in equity share capital (i.e. Issued / Subscribed & Fully Paid up share)
Number of Amiogt
pa—— (Rs. million)
As at April 1, 2018 3,429,800 34.30
Shares issued during the year 61,570.200 615.70
As at March 31, 2019 65,000,000 650.00
Equity Shares of Re. 10 each (March 31, 2019 : Re. 10 each)
Shares issued during the year B -
As at March 31, 2020 65,000,000 650.00
Equity Shares of Re. 10 each (March 31, 2019 : Re. 10 each)

(iii} Shares held by holding company (Holding company as defined in Ind AS-24 : "Related Party Disclosure")

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares {Rs. million) Shares (Rs. million)
Equity Shares :
Welspun India Limited 65,000,000 650.00 65,000,000 650.00
65,000,000 650.00 65,000,000 650.00

{iv) Details of shares held by sharehoiders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 20198

Number of % Number of %
Shares Shares
Equity Shares :
Welspun India Limited 65,000.000 100.00 65,000,000 100.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 10 per share (March 31, 2019 : Re. 10). Each shareholder is
eligible for one vole per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. in proportion te their shareholding.
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Note 10 (b) : 8% Non C

lative Compuisorily C

{i} Authorised Preference share capital

rtible{NCCC) Preference Share capital

Number of Shares Amount
(Rs.in million)
As at April 1, 2018 - -
Increase during the year 185.000,000 1,850.00
As at March 31, 2019 185,000,000 1,850.00
Increase during the year i -
As at March 31, 2020 185,000,000 1,850.00
(i) Mo ts in Pr share capiial {l.e. Issued / Subscribed & Fuily Paid up shara)
Number of Shares Amount
{Rs.in million)
As at April 1, 2018 - =
Shares issued during the year 170,218,385 1,702.18
As at March 31, 2019 170,218,385 1,70218
Shares issued during the year 14,781,615 147.82
As at March 31, 2020 185,000,000 1,850.00

8% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Re. 10 each
(March 31, 2019 : Re. 10 each fully paid up)

Terms & Rights Attached to Preference shares

8% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares have a par value of Rs 10. They entitle the holder to have a preferential right vis a vis Equity shares of the
company, with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of winging up of the company or repayment of capital. Preference shares shall carry voling rights as per
the provisions of Section 47(2] of the Act (Including any amendments or Modifications there to). The preference shares shall be convertible in the ratio of 1:1 i.e. 1 equity share
for every 1 preference share held and the preference shares shall be convertible at any lime before May 18, 2037 al the option of the Company

{lii) Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding company (Holding company as defined in Ind AS-24 : "Related Party Disclosure"}

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Name Of Shareholder Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
{Rs.in million } (Rs.in million }
8% NCCC Preference Shares of Rs 10 each Fully Paid-up:
Weispun India Limited 185,000,000 1,850.00 170,218,385 1,702.18
185,000,000 1,860.00 170,218,385 1,702.18

{iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Name Of Shareholder Number of Shares % Number of Shares %
8% NCCC Preference Shares of Rs 10 each Fully Paid-up:
Welspun India Limited 185,000.000 100 170,218,385 100
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Note 10 {c) : 0% Compuisorily Convertible Debentures {CCD)

(i) Movements in 0% Compulseorily Convertible debentures

Number of Amount
Shares {Rs.in million)
As at April 1, 2018 = ”
Debentures issued during the year - E
As at March 31, 2019 - -
Debentures issued during the year 71,438.385 714.38
As at March 31, 2020 71,438,385 714.38

Terms & Rights Attached to Convertible Debentures

0% Compulsory Convertible Debentures have a par value of Rs 10 each. They entitle the holder to have a preferential right vis a vis Equity
shares of the company, repayment in case of winding up of the company or repayment of capital. Debentures do not carry voting rights as per
the provisions of Section 71(2) of the Act (Including any amendments or Modifications there to) and the debentures shall be convertible in the

ratio of 1:1 i.e. 1 equily share for every 1 debenture held on July 30, 2029 for all

shares before July 30, 2029 at the option of the Company.

aliotments to be made. CCDs may be converled into equity

(iif) Debentures held by holding company and subsidiary

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

of holding company Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
{Rs.in million ) {Rs.in million }
0% Compulsorily Convertible debentures
Welspun india Limited 71,438,385 714.38 ~ -
71,438,385 714.38 - B

(iv) Details of Debentures held by shareholders helding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Name Of Sharehoider Number of Shares %o Number of Shares %o
0% Compuisorily Convertible debentures
Welspun India Limited 71,438,385 100 - -
As at As at

Note 10(d) : Other Equity March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

(Rs. million ) (Rs. million )
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (68.26) (21.87)
Add : Loss For the Year (845.24) (46.39)
Add: Other Comprehensive Loss (5.72) -
Balance at the end of the year (818.22) (68.26)
Share application money pending for allotment - 741.10
Balance at the beginning of the year " -
Add : Share application money received b )
Less : Shares allotted against share application money received - (741.10)
Balance at the end of the year v *
Total (919.22) {68.26)




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 11 (a) : Non-Current Borrowings

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

{Rs.in million )

(Rs.in million )

Particulars Maturity Date Terms Of Amount Amount
Repayment
Term Loans - From Banks
(Secured, Measured at Amortised Cost)
Rupee Term Loan is secured by First pari passu charge Last Instaiment| Repayable in 33 6,453.63 2,872.56
- over immovable properties/ assets of project, both present and future due in Quarter|quarterly instalments
- on all present and future movable assets of the project including but not limited to ending March|commencing from
plant and machinerymachinery spares, tools and accessories. furniture, |2029 Quarter ending
fixtures, vehicles, etc March 2021.
- an all intangibles including but not limited to goodwill uncalled capital, present
and future of the Borrower Specific to the Project.
- charge on all accounts of the Borrower including but not limited to Escrow
Accounts, Trust Retention account (TRA) and Debt Service Reserve account
specific to the Project.
-on all the Borrower's project rights, titles,interest, benefits in the existing and future
Project documents, letter of credit, guarantee and insurance policies issued in
favour of the Borrower Second pari passu charge
-on the borrower's book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissions.
{revenue of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future specific to
the Project.
Negative lien on 51% of total paid up equity shares as well as 51% of
NCDs/CCDs/Sponsor sub debt eic.
Welspun india Limited, the holding company, has issued an irrevocable and
unconditional corporate guarantee valid for a period of 12 months after the
commencement date
Less : Current maturities of long-term debt [Refer note 14 (¢)] (64.25) -
Less ! Interest accrued but not due [Refer nate 14 (c)] {75.74) {2.12)
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheef) 6,313.64 2,870.44

Notes :

1. The rates of interest on the non current borrowings in the table above are in the range of 9.15% to 9.90 % . These loans are eligible for Central & State

government subsidy.

Note 11 (a) : Current Borrowings

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

{Rs.in miliion )

{Rs.in million

Amount Amount
(Secured. Measured at Amortised Cost)
Working Capital Loan [Refer Note below] 17591 -
{Unsecured, Measured at Amortised Cost)
Loan from Related Parties [Refer Note below] 95.18 -
Current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 27.09 -

Notes :

1. Working capital loan which is primarily cash credit from banks @ 10%p a . i1s secured by hypathecation of raw materials, stock-in-process, finished goods. semi
finished goods, slores, spares and book debts and other current financial assets of the Company; second charge on entire fixed assets of the Company and
corporate guarantee from Welspun India Limited valid for a period of 12 months after the commencement date
2. Unsecured Loan from Welspun 'ndia Limited, Holding Company @6% p.a, repayable on demand.
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As At As At
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs. million) (Rs. million)
Note 12 {(a) : Non Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax 1.83 1.45
1.83 1.45
Note 12 (b) : Current Tax Liability
Taxation 3.08 3.08
3.08 3.08
Note 12 (c): Deferred tax Liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred Tax Liabilities arising on account of temporary differences in :
- Property. plant. equipment and Intangible Assets 233.16 4.88
Deferred Tax Assets on Losses
- Unabsorbed business loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation 228.28 -
Net Deferred Tax liability 4.88 4.88

Since the Company has not generated Profits in the current year the Deferred Tax assets on losses have been restricted
to the extent of Deferred Tax Liabilities.

Property, plant,
Particulars equipment and
Intangible Assets

April 01, 2018
(Charged) / Credited :
to Statement of Profit and Loss 4.88
to Other Comprehensive Income -

March 31, 2019 4.88
(Charged) / Credited :
to Statement of Profit and Loss -
to Other Comprehensive income -

March 31, 2020 4.88
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Particulars

Note 13: Other non current liabilities
Deffered Income (Refer Note 37)

Note 14 (a) : Trade payables

Taotal Qutstanding Dues of Micro Entreprses and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 34)
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Entreprises and Smai Enterprises

- Relatad Parties
- Others

HNote 14(b} : Other current financials liabliities

Creditors for Capital Purchases

Other Payables

Retenton Money Payable

interest Accrued but nof due on Borrowings (Refer Note 11)
Current maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note 11)

Note 15 : Employee Benefit obli

Provision for Gratuty (Refer Note 21)

Provision for Compensated absences (Refer Note 21)
Emplayee benefits payable

Note 16 : Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customers
Statutory Dues Payable

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rs. million} {Rs. million}
1.348.69 174.08
1,348.59 174.08
61.19
212.03 65.68
302.98 1573
576.20 81.41
298.82 367.55
52.62 1.38
7.7 0.0t
75.74 2.12
64.25 ~
519.16 380.07
15.00 6.37
978 541
0.45 0.05
25.23 11.83
=t
£9.81 *
16.74 7.85
106.55 7.85
-5/




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Yoar ended Year ended
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019
{Rs. million) (Rs. million)
Note 17 : Revenue from Operations
(a) Salo of Products
Sale of Products - Traded Goods-Domestic 405 02 -
Sub Total 405.02 .
(b) Other Operating Income
Sale of Scrap "nn -
Goverrment grant income
- SGST Incentive (Refer Note 371 123.63 -
= Ore lime capital subsidy, reimbursement of land cost and stamp duty jRefer Note 37] 12.44 .
Sub Total 147.18 .
Total 552.20 -
1) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below i the disaggregalon of the Compary's reverue from contracls
with customers:
Year ended Year ended
Revenue March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rs. million} {Rs. million)
india 416.13 -
Total fram with cust 41613 -
2) Contract balances
The folowng table prowides 'nformabion about receivables, coniract assets and
contract Labilties from conlracts with custemers
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Rs. million) {Rs_million)
Contract tiabiites (advances from customers) 89.51 -
89.81 -
3} Reconciliation of gnised in the of profit and loss
with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs. million) {Rs. miflion)
Revenue as per contracted price 416.13 -
Less: y , ¢t . markd: , etc. . -
from with 416.13 -
E
4} Ri ciliation of from with ravenue from contracts
with customers
Asat Asat
31, 2020 __March31,2019
Particulars {Rs. million)} {Rs. million}
Revenue from operators 55220 .
Less: VAT/State Goods and Service Tax Incentive 12363 -
Onetime Capital Subsidy 12.44 -
R from with cust 416.13 -
Note 18 : Other iIncome
Interest on Fixec Deposits 045 14.56
Profit on Sale of Share/Mutual fund . 535
Exchange Gain (Net) - 14.86
Total 0.45 34.87
=
Note 19 : Raw ials including kagi
Opening Stock N -
Add: Purchases of Raw Material 983.20 -
993.20 -
Less: Closing Stock 343 93 -
64927 -
Total 649.27 -
e
Note 20 : Ci in of F Goods and Semifinishod goods / WIP
(increase) Docrease in Stocks
Opening Stock
Finghed Goods - =
Work-n-Process . #
Closing Stock
Finshed Goods : 977 -
Work-n-Process 23875 -

{increase) ! docrease in Stocks 13‘.!8 52|




WELSPUN FLOORINGLIMITED

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 21 : Empioyee benefits

Salaries, Wages, Al owances and Other Benefits
Gratusty

Conlributon to Provident and Other Funds
Leave compensation

Staff and Labour Welfare

Total

Year ended
March 34, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

{Rs. million )

23720
§.92
23.14
283
6.85
276.04

{Rs. million )

8.51

6.51

The figures mentioned above are net off employee costs capilalised during the year ended March 31, 2020 amounting 1o Rs.185.50 miton

{March 31,2019 : Rs 4.72 mition)

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under :-

Defined Contribution Pians

During the year. the Company has recognised the folowing amounts in the
Statement of Profit and Loss:

- Empoyers’ Contnbution to Provident Fund*

- Empoyers’ Contribution to Emp oyees” Siate Insurance *
- Natona Pension Fund*

- Empoyers' Contribution to Emp oyees' Pension Scheme*
- Empoyers' Contribution to Superannuation Scheme*

" included in Contrbution to Provident and Other Funds

Defined Benefit Plan

Contribution to Gratuity Fund {Funded Defined Benefit Plan}

The Company operales a graltuity pian through the “We spun F ooring Limited Employees Graluity Trust” Every empoyee s entted lo a beneflt
equivaent to fifleen days salary jast drawn for each completed year of service in Ene with the Payment of Gratuily Act. 1972. The same is payabie at the

time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earfer,

Risk exposure

{Rs. miliion)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
14.40 314
143
7.02
% o9z
0.29 0.66
23.14 4.72

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuaral risk such as longitivty risks, inferest rate risks. market (imeastment} risks.

Major Assumptions

Discount Rate
Salary Escalation Rate @

Rate of Employee Turmnover

Mortaity Rate Duning Employment

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
% p.a. %pa
6.89 1.76
6.5%p.a for the next 5 7% p.a. for the next 2 years,
years, 5% pa for 6% pa. for the next 3 years &

thereafter, starting from
Bth year

For servica 2 years and
beiow 8% pa For
service 3 years o 4
years 600% pa For
service 5 years and
above 4 00% p.a.

indian Assured Lives
Mortaity (2005-08)

5% pa thereafler, starfing
from the &th year

For service 2 years and below
8% pa., for service 3-4 years
6% pa. for service 5 years
and above 4% pa.

Indian Assured Lives
Hortality {2006-08)

@ The estimales for future salary increases considered takes info account the inflation. senicrty, promoton and other re evant factors

o

Change in the Present Value of Obligation

Opening Fresent Value of Obigation

Current Service Cost

interest Cost

Total amount recognised in profit or loss
Remeasurements

{Gan)/Loss from change in fnancal assumptions
Experence (Gains)/Losses

Total amount gnised in other prehensive i
BenefU Exgratia pad

Closing Present Value of Obligation

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

8.37
242
0.49

6.37

291

{1.23)
{4.49)

6.37

{5.72)

15.00

6.37




WELSPUN FLOORINGLIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

©. Balance Shoet Reconciliation

Opening Net {Liatxity) Assel

Exp Recognzed in of Profitor Loss
Expenses Recognzed m OC

Empioyer's Contribution

Kel (Liabiity)/ Assel Recognised in the Balance Shest

d. Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Present vaiue of Othgation

Fanr Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status ((Surpiue/ (Defiet))

Nel {Liabiiity)/ Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet

g in the Stat of Profit and Loss

Curren: Service Cost

rierest Cost

nleres! income

Total Expenses recognized in the siatement of profit and loss*
* included in Employee Benefts Expense

L E r

gr in the Other C ive Income

Re-measurement

Acthanal (GanspLosses an Obkgation For the yaar
Retutn on Plan Assets Exciudng amounts included i imeves! Income
HNet {incoma)Expenses for the Period Recognized in OCI

@. Sensitivity Analysis

Frojected Beneft O on Gurrent A

DeRa Effect of +1% Changs in Rate sf Discounting

Detta Etfect of -1% Change in Rale of Discouning

Defta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary ‘noresse
Deka Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary increase
Detta Evfect of +7% Change in Rale of Employee Tumover
Deha Effect of -1% Change < Rate of Empioyee Turnoves

(Rs. meton]
Asat As at March
March 31, 2020 31, 2019
637 5
{291) @m
{572} -
{15.00) &3
(Rs. mikan)
As = As at March
March 31, 2020 34, 2019
(15.00) (837)
(1500 @
(16.00) (837)
{Rs mikon)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
242 837
048 &
291 837
{Rs. mékon)
Yaar ended Year ended
_March31, 2020 = March3i, 2068
572 #
1572) 5
(Rs. muikon)
Year anded Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1500 637
{138) 1052
161 o8
182 062
{1.39) (054)
02 014
{0.30) {018)

TheaMsm:MWylﬂmMmamm-nmuwmwmnnmrq all other assumptions constant. in practice #us is unkkely 1o occus and changes in some of the assumplions may
L When

g e of the defined benefit

aciuanal

ihe same method {present vaiue of the defined benefit

Mmalmmﬂmwmjmnw mnmmnmmmwum labilityassel recognised in the balance sheet

The meth and types of

h. Defined benetit liability and employer contributions

used i prepanng the sensitivity analysss did not change compared 1o the fnor penod.

d with the

The weighled average duration of the defined benefit ook gation 1s 13 years (March 31, 2010 -11 years). The expecied matunty analysis of und:scounted gratuily 1s as follows.

(Rs mation]
[Particuiars Less than a year Batween 1- 2 years Between 2-5  Batween 6-10 11 years and Total
yoars yoars above

March 31, 2020

Defined benefi sbigation (gratuty) 138 096 256 602 2516 3807
Total 138 056 255 602 2516 3607
March 31, 2019

[;nmnnn y 043 042 203 199 1068 1553
Total 043 042 203 193 1056 1553

i Other Employoe Bonafit

The katsbity for compensated absences as al year endis Rs. 8 78 miion (March 31, 2019 Rs 5.4° muinon)




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(Rs. million) (Rs. million)
Note 22 : Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on Tangible Assels (Refer Note 3) 22442 0.41
Amortisation on Intangible Assels (Refer Note 4) 57 0.32
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 3.06 -
Total 231.056 0.73
Note 23 : Other Expenses
Contract Labour Charges 29.64 -
Rent [Refer Note 36] 0.09 151
Legai and Professional Charges 2879 19.36
Insurance 588 -
Water charges 0.08 -
Rates and Taxes 3.82 21.20
Power, Fuel and Water Charges 125.08 2
Security Expenses 8.76 -
Directors' Silting Fees 0.08 0.14
Printing and Stationery 051 -
Postage and Courier 417 219
Exchange Loss (Net) 54.94 -
Design and Development Expenses 2.83 -
Travelling and Conveyance 7791 -
Loss on Sale of Share/Mutual fund 0.15 -
Advertising and Sales Promation 0.19 -
Royalty Expenses - 2.50
Guest house expenrses 4.48
Payments to Auditors (Refer Note 23 (a) below) 1.27 1.13
Office expenses 8.15 -
Certification charges 317 -
Recruitment expenses 3.56 -
Miscellaneous 13.97 4.76
Total Other Expenses 375.52 52.79
Note:
Note 23(a): Details of Payments to Auditors
As auditor 1.10 1.00
For Other Services 0.08 0.08
For Reimbursement of expenses 0.08 0.05
Total 1.27 1.13
Note 24: Finance Cost
interest on Term Loan 166.42 =
(Net of Interest Subsidy Rs 151.82 Million (Previous Year NiL)
Interest to Others - 0.18
Discounting and Bank and Other Charges 37.18 10.58
Interest on Lease Liabililies 0.96 5
Total 204.53 10.74




WELSPUN FLOORINGLIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Note 25: Income tax expenses

This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense. show amounls that are recognised directly in eguity and
hew the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains sigrificant estimates made in
refation to the Company's tax positions.

Pursuant to the changes in the tax rates, with effect from April 1, 2019 the Company has opted for lowet tax rates
(a) Statement of Profit and Loss

{Rs. million)
WMarch 31, Warch 31,
2020 2019
Current Tax
Current Tax for the year - 561
Total Current Tax Expense - 5.61
Deferred Tax
Relating 1o onginating and reversal of temporary differences - 488
Total Deferred Tax Expense - 4.88
Income Tax Expense - 10.49
(b) Reconcilition of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate
{Rs. million)

Year Ended  Year Ended
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019

Loss for the year before | Tax Exj (845.24) (35.89)
Tax at the indian tax rate @ 25 17% (Previous Year : 27.82%) (212.75) (9.99)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in ing taxable i

Preoperative Expenses not allowable as deduction - 16.64
Deffered tax assets not created 212.75 -
Others - 0.84
income tax Expenses - 10.49

Deferred Tax assets amounting to Rs. 212,75 million have not been created on losses.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 26 : Fair value measurements

Fi ial instr ts by gory

{Rs. milion)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
FYPL FVOCI Amortised FVPL FVOC!H Amortised

Financial assets
Cash and cash equvaents - = 332 = - 7259
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 253 - - 10.8¢
Secunly deposits - - 15.94 - - o021
interest accrued on fixed deposit, bonds and certificates - . - - - a.03
Government Grant Receivable = “ 1,221.93 - - -
Interest Receivable under Subvention Scheme 2 = 315.43) - = -
Total financial assets = ! 1,559.15 - = 8372
Financial liabilities
Borrowngs and inlerest accrued thereon = - 672472 7 - 2,872.56
Trade payables - : 576.20 - R 81.41
Lease Liabiity - - a61 - = -
Credifors for Capital Purchases - - 208.82 & - 367.55
Other financ al liablities 4 % 8035 % - 10.39
Total financial liabilities ] % 7,688.70 ] = 3,331.91
{i) Fair value of Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

(Rs. milion)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Amount Amount

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equuaents 332 332 7259 7259
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 253 253 10.89 10.89
Secunty deposits 15.94 1584 021 0.21
Interest accrued on fixed deposit. bonds and certificates - - c.03 003
Government Grant Receivabie 1.221.93 122183 - -
Interest Receivable under Subvention Scherre 315.43 31543 = o
Total 1,559.15 1,559.15 83.72 83.72
Financial liabilities
Borrowings and interest accrued thereon 6.724.72 6.724.72 2,B72.56 2.872.56
Trade payables 576.20 576.20 81.41 8141
Lease Liabiity 9.61 9.61 - -
Creditors for Capital Purchases 298.82 298.82 367.55 367.55
Other financal liab lites 80.35 80.35 10.39 10.39
Total 7.683.70 7,689.70 3,331.91 3,331.81

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivaents, bank baances other than cash and cash equivalents, government grants, interest subs:dy and incentive,
race payab:e. capital creditors and other current financ al are cor 10 be appi ale'y same as ther [ar value, due (0 their shorl-ierm nature
and have been classfied as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

For financial assets and liabiiibes thal are measwed at fair value. the carrying amounts are equal o the fair values

{ii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgemenls and estmates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments thal are (a) recognised and measured at
fair vaive and (b) measured at amortsed cost and for which fair vaiues are discosed in the financ al stalements. To provide an indicaton about the reliabiity
of the \nputs used in delermining far vaiue, the company has ciassified its fnancial instruments into the three levels prescr bed under the accounting standard
An explanation of each level folows underneath the table.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. milion)
Financial assets and liabiiities which are measured
at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Cash and cash equvaents B(a) - - 33 332
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 8(b) - - 253 253
Securily deposits - - 15.04 15.94
Government Grant Receivable 5&8(c) - - 122183 122193
Inierest Receivable under Subvention Scheme - - 31543 31543
Total financial assets - - 1,569.15 1,559.15
Financial Liabilities
Barrowings and nterest accrued thereon 11{a) & 14(b) - - 672472 672472
Trade payabes 14(a) o - 576.20 576.20
Lease Liabiity 36 - - 867 981
Creditors for Capta Purchases 14(b) - - 29882 28882
Other fnancia | abilties 14ib) - - 80.35 80.35
Total financial liabilities - - 7,688.70 7,689.70
= (Rs. milion)
Financial assets and liabilities which are measured
at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed|  TO1°S oy Eavel2 Favel3 ot
At March 31, 2019
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivaent &(a) - - 7258 7258
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivaents 8(bjy - - 10.89 10.69
Security deposits S5&8(c) ~ - o1 021
Interest Accrued on Deposils - - 0.03 0.03
Totai financial assets = = 8372 83.72
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings and interest accrued thereon 11(a) & 14(b} - - 2,87256 287256
Trade payables 14(a) - - 8141 8141
Credtors for Capital Purchases 14{b) - - 36755 367.55
Other financal habiities 14{b) - - 10.39 10.35
{ Total financial labilities - = 3,331.91 3,331.91]

The above mentoned grouping into Leve! 1 to Level 3, s described below.

Level 1: This hrerarchy includes financ al instruments measured using quoted prces. This includes listed equity instruments, exchange traded funds and
mutual funds that have quated price. The fair value of at equily instruments which are Iraded in the stock exchanges is valued using the clasing price as at the
reportng period

Level 2: The fair vaiue of fnancial instruments that are not traded in an active market (such as traded bonds. debentures, government securibes and
commercial papers) 's determined using Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Associaton of India (FIMMDA) inputs and valuaticn technques whch
maxmise the use of cbservabie market data and rely as litte as possibe on enlity-specific estmates. If a significant inputs required fo fair value an
instrument are chservable, the instrument is inchided n leve! 2. The mutual funds are vaed using the ciosing Net Assets Value (NAV). NAV represents the
price at which the issuer will issue furlher units and wit redeem such units of mutual fund to and from the investors.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observahie market data, the instrument 1s included 'n 'evel 3. This is the case for uniisied
preference shares and security deposits included in level 3.

There are na internal transfers of firanc al assets and fnancial Labilties between Leve: 1, Lovel 2 and Leve' 3 durng the perod. The Company’s puliicy is 1o
recogrise iransfers into and fransfers out of fair value hierarchy 'evel as at the end of reporting period.




WELSPUN FLODRING LIMITED
KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 27 . Financial Risk Managemaent

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, kquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financia perf aof the C: Y. dert financia . such
as foreign exchange forward contracls are eniered to hedge certain fareign ¥ Tisk exp Derivatives are used y for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments
Risk Exposure arising from Measuremant Management
Cred#t risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade|Ageing anaysis Drversification of bank deposits. credit imits and ‘etlers of credit
receivabies. cerivalive  financia:
nskaments Enancal assels
measured at amartised cast
Liquidity risk Borowings and other labiites Raling cash fow forecasts Availatiity of commitied credii ines and bomowing faciities
Market risk - foreign “[Fonre i Cash fiow f Sensilvity analysis  |Forward Foreign Exchange Conlracis
exchange Recognised finangal assels and
fabiites nol denominated in Indian
Rupee {INR}
Market risk - inlerest Long-lerm borrowings at variable Sensitivity Analysis The Company achieves the cpfimum interes! rale profie by benchmarking
rate rates g rates thai 1 in which the Comgpany|
cperales. Further, the Company is eligibe for inlerest subsidy of uplo 8% pa.
an the term lcans as a resut the Company does nal hedge these.

The Company's nsk management is camed out by a central ireasury depariment under policies approved by the Board of Direcicrs. Company's treasury team identifies, eva.uates and hedges finandial risis in

close with the C 3 't neads. The Board provides writien principles for avera | fisk management, az wel as poicies covering specif ¢ aress, such as foreign exchange
nsk, interest rate nsk, credit risk. use of o Eve financia i ts and i i . and investmen! of excess liquidity
{A} Cradit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivaents. investments camied al amontised cost and deposits with banks and financal inskiutions, as well as credit exposures 1o who'esale customers inciuding
outstanding receivables

(i} Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty wil nol meet its obigation under a financial instrument or cusiamer contract, leading 10 a financial less. The Company is exposed 1o credit risk from its financing
adclivibes. incuding deposits with bank and financial instiution. foreign exchange transactions

Trade Recoivable

As per the Business Mode!. enlive sales are made of Welspun Global Brands Limited (WGBL) a group Company

The icllowing tabie gives detals in respect of ge of revenue from he top fen customers.

Particulars For the year ondod | For the year anded
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Rovanua from top 10 Customers. 100,00% 0.00%

Other financial assats

The Comgpany mainiai in cash and cash eq: . term its with banks.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
{B) Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers tc the nsk that the Comgany wil enceunter difficulty in meeting otligations associated wih firancial kabites that are setiied by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Company

manages kqudity fisk by mamtaining adequate reserves, banking faciites and reserve bomowing faciiies. by confinuously manitering forecast and aciual cash flows and by maiching the maturity profies
of financial assets and kabiites

{i) Financing arrangements.
The Company had actess to the fol owing undrawn borrewing facililies al Ihe end of the repering penod:

{Rs. milian)
As at March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Floating rate
{Expining within cne year (packing credit bank averdraft and other faciities) 324 08 -
Expifing within cne year from Holding Comgpany) 965.00 -
Expiring beyond one year (Term Loans) 1.724.11 522020
[Totas 3.013.20 522920

Tre bark overdraft faciities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank withoul notice.

(if) Maturitios of Financial abilities

The tatles be'ow analyse the Company’s financial kabiities intc re'evant matunty groupings based on ther contractual matunties for.

- ali non denvative fnancial liab:ites, and

- net and gross settied derivative financia instruments for which the contractual matusisies are essental for an understanding of the timing ef the cash flows,
The amounts discosed in the tab'e are the contraciual undiscounted cash flaws

As at March 31, 2020

{Rs. mation)
Contractua! maturities of financial Lessthand 3 months 10§ G monthsto 1 yoar | Batween 1and 2 Between 2and § Bayond 5 years Total
labilities Months months years years
Non-gerivatives
{Borrowings. 47583 153.28 310.36 854 85 2.587.02 £77388 | 1056512
Trade payabes 578.20 - - - - - 576.20
Other ficancia: liabiites 5144 754 19809 111 - - 379.18
Lease Lialviities 1.20 1.20 240 553 1.1 - 11.44
Total non-derivative liabilities 1,404 67 162.02 340.85 BE1.49 2,989.03 5,773.88 | 11.531.54
As at March 31, 2020
ve Fi (based Lass than 3 3 months to 6 Gmonths to 1 year | Batween 1 and 2 Batwean 2and 5 Bayond 5 years Total
on contracted rates) Months months years yoars
Forwatd contracts USD- INR 11228 . - - - - 11229
Forward EUR- INR 98 48 - 3453 & 3 . 132.99
Total 210.75 - 34.53 - . - 245.28
As at March 31, 2019
(Rs. mitkon)
Contractua! maturities of financial Lessthan3 3 months to & G monthsto 1 year| Betweeniand2 | Between Zand 5 Beyond 5 years Total
liabilities Months monihs years years
Non-darivatives
|Barrowings 73.08 7188 143.71 31535 1,317.67 300673 | 501870
Trade payabes 8141 - - - - - 2141
Other financia: abiies 1039 367 .55 - . - - 37784
Tota! non-derivative liabilities 165.78 A438.41 143.71 31585 1,317.57 309573 | 5478.05
|Derivatives (net settiod)
|Fareign exchange forward contracts - = . - . 5 -
Total derivative liahilities N = . & - - %
{C} Markst risk
(i} Foreign currency risk
The Comgpany trar o inaled in foreign ies main'y fowards imporl procurement of Capital Goods o ge rate i i arise. The

Company uses foreign currency forward contracts 1o hesge its nsks associated with foreign curcency fuctuatons re‘ating to certain frm nnmm':arm highly probab'e forecast ransactons and foreign
y required at the sef date of certain receivables/payatles. The uze of foreign currency forward confracls s governed by the Company's sirategy approved by the Board of Directors, which
provide principias on the use of such forwarg i with the Ci 's nRk pevicy and pr

(a} Foreign currency risk exposura

The Comgany's expeswre to foreign curency risk at the end of the reporting period in india Rupeed are as folows -
{Rs. mifion]

March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
Foreign Currency usp EUR Othars” uso EUR Others™

Financial Assots
Trade Receivables - - . . - -
TR TR O —

fareign currency risk - - - - - -
Financial liabilities

Trade payabes and
provisions

Other financia kabiflies 47.65 B2 56 a9 188.7¢ 8741 445
Foreign exchange

21576 551 - . - -

(16.72) (32.95) 3 P 5 ;

Net exposure to
{foreign currency risk 246.69 55.12 292 188.70 87.41 4,45
I{tiabilities)

Not opon exposures
(assots-liabilities) - (246.69) (85.12) {292 (188.70) {87 41) (4.45)
assats /{liabilities)
* Others consists of GBP and CNY

Amount of fnancia hedge, as menticned above do not include outstanding forward cantracts of Rs. 204 77 Milion (March 31, 2015 Ni) that are fowards firm commitment / righly probab'e
forecasi transactions 1o purchase where comresponding exposure is yet to te recorded in ihe books.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{B) Foreign currancy sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes m the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financia instruments and foreign forward exchange contracts

{Rs. mition)

impact on profit before tax
31-Mar-20 March 31, 2019
USD sensitivity
USD - INR - increase by § % (March 31, 2819 - 5%)° 112.33) (6.44)
USD - INR - Decrease by 5% (March 31, 2019 - S%3° 12.33 044
EURO sansitivity
EURO - INR - Increase by 4 % (March 31, 2019 - §%)" (2.20) 14.37)
EURD - INR - Decraase by 4 % (March 31, 2018 - 5%)* 220 437
(EURO ity also calculated for EUROAISD forward )g 83 on March 31, 2020)
* Heding att oiter vaniables constant
(c) Fair vaiue hadge
The Company uses fore:gn currency forwand contracis 1o hedge e risks associated with foreign currency fuctuations relating fo cerain firm commitments. and foreign currency requited al the settement
date of certain payat'es. The use of foreign cumency forward is g by the C y's strategy by the Board of Directars. which provide prindipies on the use of such forward
contracls consislent with the Company's risk policy and 3
As at March 31, 2020
Faliowing tables discloses profile of timing of the amount of foraign exchange forward contracts :
Foraign Exchange Forward Conmtracts Lass than 3 Months 3 months to § months € manths to 1 year Total
Amount in Million | Avarage Rate {Rs) | Amaunt inMilion | Average Rata {Rs.) | Amount in Mittion Average Rate {Rs.)

Feorward coniracts USD- INR 148 75.85 - - - - 148
Forward con EUR- INR 121 81.07 - - o.40 BS 68 181
Totat 2.69 - .40 308

(i) Cash fiow and fair value interest rata risk
The Campany is exposed %o inlerest rale nsk tecause funds are borrowed at both fived and flaating interest rates. inleres! rale risk is measured by using the cash fiow sensitily for changes in vanable

inferest rate. The Company use: a mx of interest rae financia to ge the liguidity ana fund requirements for itz day to day cperations iike shor term loans. The fisk is
ged by the C by mainiai an appropnate mix between fixed and floating rate bormowings.
(a) Interest rate risk exposurs
The exposure of the Campany's borrowing 1o interest rate changes a1 the and of the reporiing period are as fo/lows:
{Rs. milion)
Patticulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Fixed rate bomowings 85.18 -
F'oating rale botrowings 6.601.79 2,870 44
Total borrowings 6,696.97 2,870.44
Ag at ihe end of the period, e C y had the variable rate it
31-Mar-20 March 31, 2019
Waightod
average Baiance % of total inans “'.9m:::°' Balanco % of total loans
interest ratg
[Barrowings -Term Loan 9 E4% 642589 %% $63% 287044 100%
Net exposure to cash - 8.425.09 - - 287044 -
fiow inierest rate risk
{b} Sensitivity
Profit or (loss) is tive to higl inteces] from b g5 25 4 rasut of changes ininferes! rales
Impact on profit before tax
31-Mar-20 March 31, 2019
Increase by 25 basis points (March 31, 2018 - 25 basis points)’ (16.08) 7.18)
Deczease by 25 basis points (March 31, 2019 - 25 basis poinis)* 16.06 7.18

* Hading ail ciner vanables constan! including change in interes! subsidy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
Note 28 : Capital Management

{a) Risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is o safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous
year.

The Company sets the amount of capilal required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital investments.
The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity. internal furnd generation and other long term borrowings. The Company's policy is to use
shori-term and long-term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
Net debt are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents) and short-lerm

investments. Equity comprises all components excluding other components of equity (which comprises the cash flow hedges. transiation of foreign
operalions and available-for-sale financial investments).

Consistent with others in the industry. the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt (lotal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity (as shown in the balance sheet)

The Company's strategy is 1o maintain a gearing ratio within 3:1. The gearing ratios were as follows:

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Non-current borrowangs 6.313.64 287044
Current maturities of Long term debt 64.25 -
Current borrowings 271.09 -
Less: cash and cash equivalent (3_}_2') {72.59)
Net debt 6.645.66 2.797.85
Total equty 2.295.16 228392
[Gearing ratio 2.90 1.23
{i) Loan covenants

Under the terms as mentioned in the term loan agreement with banks, the Company is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

- al least 20% base equily contribution shall be brought in form of equity share capital
- Minimurm Fixed assets Coverage ratio (FACR) not less thar 1.25 times
- Mimmum Deb! Service Coverage Ratio {DSCR] not less than 1.25 times

- Maximum Total Rupee Facility to Tangible Net Worth Ratio not greater than 3 times till FY 2023 and 2.25 times thereafler

- Maximum Total Facility to Tangible Nel Worth Ralio not greater than 4 times fill FY 2023 and 3 limes thereafter

- Debt to Equiy ratio should not exceed 71.94 : 28.06 i e. 2.56 (Total Outstanding Facility divided by Equity contributions including convertible

prefererice share capital, convertible debentures made by Holding Company)

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2018
Non-current borrowings 6.313.64 2.870.44
Current maturities of Long term debt 6425 -
Current borrowings 271.09 -
Interest accrued on Long term debt 75.74 212
| Total outstanding facility 6.724.72 287256
Equity contribulions made by Holding Company 3.214.38 2.352.18
Debt to Equity Ratio 2.09 1.22

The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.

Note 29 : Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization characlerized the outbreak of the new coronavirus ("COVID-19") as a pandemic. This outbreak of
COVID-19 is causing significant disturbance and slowd of economic aclivilies globally and in India. The operations of the Company were impacied,
due to shutdown / temporary closure of plant and office following lockdown in the States as per directives from the Government of India. The Company
has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives from the Government of india.

In assessing the recoverability of carrying amounts of Company's assels such as praperty, plart & equipment. inventories, and other assets, the Group
has considered various irternal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements. The assessment was based on
various estimates and assumptions including estimales of assets, cash flow projections, operaling performance including expected order book and
margins based on forecasts of demand in domestic and global markets. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and
based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expecis to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

Further, the Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position (including servicing of debts) for next one year as the Company has
commenced the commercial preduction from current year and being in initial state of the business, had incurred a net cash loss during the current year.
Basis assessment, the Company has conciuded that the Company may need financial support and parent company has agreed 1o provide the same.
Accordingly. the Company will be able to meet ali its cbligatior's for next one year. Therefore, the financial statements are prepared on going concern
basis

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Group
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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Note 30 : Related Party Disclosures

(i) Names of related parties and nature of relationships:

{a)Enterprise where cantrol exists
Holding company
Uttimate holding company

(b)Failow subsidiary company

Welspun india Limited (WiL)
Prasert Muttiventure Private Limited (till May 20, 2019)
Welspun Group Master Trust (WGMT) (with effect from May 21, 2019)

\Welspun Global Brands Limited (WGBL)
[Welspun USA Inc. (WUSA)

P i or of such p | Velspun Corp Limited (WCL)
exercise significant influence or control and AYM Syntex Limited (AYM)
with whom transactions have taken place
during the year
Name Nature of relationship
{d)Key Management Personne! Rajesh Rameshkumar Mandawewala Director
Dipali Goenka Directar
Altaf Jiwani Directar
Devendra Patil Director
Mukesh Sawalani (Chief Execttive Officer and Whole Time Director we f June 1. 2018) {(MS)
Sharad Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer we.f June 1, 2018 till February 16, 2019) (SA)
Shashikant Sahco (Chief Financial Officer we.f February 16, 2019 till June 19, 2020)) (SS)
Pradeep Poddar Independent Director (PP}
Shashikant Thorat Coempany Secretary
Chirag Goenka Chief Financial Officer wee f June 25, 2020
{i} Terms and Conditions

- All transactions with related parties are priced on an amm's length basis and resulting outstanding balances are to settied in cash.

- All outstanding balances are unsecured.
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Naota 30 : Ratsted party iransactiona

[PARTICULARS WL WGBL WUBA WASEZ WCL ATM Koy managemont Forsonner™
PP ELY ES) mS
Transactions duting the year
Purchase of Services! Expenses incurred * 3m - - - - 11402 - - - 137.03
(1935 - - (193 = (€3 - 178
Purcnase of Foced Assats / Captial Gagds * 004 - - - E - - - o4
(1120 . . - - - - . - a120
|Corperate Guaraniee comnissior 2428 . - - - - . . - 2428
®an . : R 3 e i . g @on
Reimbursement of Expenses = 035 12773 - L34 - - - . - 12818
- - 5175 . . . 4 % - 5178,
Purchase of Gocds/ MEIS Licenses 2447 554 - . - - w - a0
(G2 11.34) . ) - o - 778
| Sale of Goods * - 46T E4 - - . - - - - - 26784
Remuneraton & Commession & = - - - - - & 553 1686 22.18
= - . “ . - 3.55) (065 (12.43) (1463
Direcicr Sitiing Fee * 2 2 : 5 E oce E = i oes
. . - . . - 10.14) - . - (0.14)
Loen Advance & Depcsits Recaived # 12050 - . . . - - - 12C 80
1312.00) - - - - - - - o % 31200
Repaymeni Leans Advances snd Decosts recened 2550 - - & £ < = = i 2580
Intesest Expensas 42 a . . . N . . N B o4z
@0g - - - - - - - - o
Issue of Equity Shares. - - - - - - .
hisue of Preference Shares Shares 14782 - = - . . . . " 147 82
(1.578.78) - - - . . B - - 157878
Issue of Debentures 71438 - - - - - - - - - TI438
(Corperate Guarantee Receved S2000 - - - - - - - - 50C.00
15.400.02) . - = . a < g . . 15,100 001
Closing Bulances
Equily Stare Cagilal 850.00 . " - a = " # % - B850.00
1£50.00) s . - . = - - - . {6SC 00
Praference Share Caplsal 1,850.00 = ‘ < @ : - g E 1,850 00
(1702.18) - - - - - (1.702.18;
Issue of Debentures 71436 = - - - - . N & 71438
Loans, Acvances and Depesits reosived (Including loterest Acorued on fhereen) 11088 . - . . - - . - 11588
801 . . “ - = = . . o
Share Apptcation Mocey Pending Aiorment g = . R - R . . " = %
Tade Payables and Advance reoshved from customers 4368 #8277 17648 - s eose - - - - W|EBL
(14.09)] 134 5114 = (13 - s - - - #7170,
{Receivaties - - - - - - - - = u
Corparate Guarantee - Balance Oumsianging 885000 - - . - - - - - - 285000
{11.150.00) - - - - - - - - - 41,150 00}
Other Commitiments. $E5.00 - - - - - - - 6500

Previous years Agures ase given in Lrackets.
* Amourd s ircusive of iaxes

“* Aa i sbiies for defined baneft pians and compensalnd abBences 048 prévided on achnrial basis for he Company a3 a whoie the amaunt fertnaning o KMP'S 216 nat iInCited it e aBtve Ltk
#Lsans ot RS 23 milion recahed dufing the year 0% Ce Converizls Debantures [March 31, 2019 Leans and inierest nel 8 TDS wars covvered to 8% Non-Cumalative Compulsoriy Converttis Prefanence Shares
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36 Lease as lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various items of other equipment used in its operations. Leases of
other equipment generally have lease terms between 3 and 4 years. The Company's obligations under
its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted

from assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low value.
The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and lease of low value assets’ recognition exemptions for
these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and the movements during the

year:
(Rs. million)
| Right of use of assets
Particulars | Other Equipments
As at April 1, 2019 ! 4.44
Lease adjustments ' 2.25
Additions 5.83
Depreciation expense {3.06)
As at March 31, 2020 9.46

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

{Rs. million)
Particulars Total
As at April 1, 2019 4.44
Accretion of interest 0.96
Lease adjustments 225
Additions 583
Payments (3.88)
As at March 31, 2020 9.60
Current lease liabilities 3.84
Non-Current lease liabilities 5.77

The following are the amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:

(Rs. million)
Particulars Total
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 3.06
interest expense on lease liabilities 0.96
Expense relating to short-term leases (included 224
in other expenses)
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 6.26

Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%

The Company had fotal cash outflows for leases of Rs. 6.11 million in March 31, 2020. There are no
future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options
are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased- asset portfolio and align with
the Company's business needs. Management exercises significant judgment in delermining whether
these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.




WELSPUN FLOORING LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Note 37 : ‘Pursuant fo the mvestment in the project in Telangana, the State Cabmel via letter G.O.Ms. No. 19 dated March 23, 2018 agreed to extend the customized govemment
mncentives to Welspur Floonng Limited. basis which the Compary i eligible for varnious suhsﬁu including one time capilal subsidy. rebate on land cost. reimbursemert of stamp

duly paymer! and others. Cunng the year. the Company had tion and accordingy filed c'am aggregating to Rs. 1,096 30 mikon, in respect of one-
trme capita subsidy, rembursement of land cost and stamp duly, with concemed numms Out of tota caum, the concerned authortes had sanctoned claim aggregatrg Rs
373 27 miflion for the ab sbsidies. The C y that the app for the balance amount of Rs. 725.03 mion wil be rece.ved in due course.

The Company has classified above mentoned subsides as captal subsdy as these are 'inked with investmants made m the project and has recorded government grant
receivabies and corresponding deferred income of Rs. 1.098 30 milion beng the full amount of one-lime capital subsidy. reimbursement of lard cost and stamp duty. However, the
government grant income recognzed in statement of profit and loss ie, Rs. 12.44 milion with respect 1o the above subsidies s resincted 1o the amount sanctioned by the
concermed authonbes in the proportion of depreciation expense on the underlying assels.

Note 38 : The figures for the previous year are re-arfanged’ re-grouped, wherever necessary

As per our report of ever date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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